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“"The New Castle and Frenchtown Railroad originally crossed the Delmarva
Peninsula from a wharf in New Castle to a wharf at Frenchtown on the Elk River
in Maryland. Part of the original route, from the Delaware Railroad near
. Porter to New Castle, still is in operation as part of the Penn Central System.
From Porter to Frenchtown, the right-of-way is abandoned for railroad purposes,

~although parts of it serve as country roads.

Much of the abandoned right-of-way survives as a trace along field
boundaries and through second-growth woods. At Belltown Run, west of Delaware
Route 401, a stone-arch bridge survives in good condition. Delaware Route
394, near the Maryland 1ine, is built on part of the roadbed. At Frenchtown,
_the Tong curving roadbed to the ET1k River survives asa county. road; another
portion of the roadbed east of Frenchtown is a private lane that .connects
with Route 213. . = .- . o : , : : .

The most eyident supviving portions of the railroad are in the valleys
of small streams, where earth-fill embankments suryive. The long causeway
across the valley of Belltown Run is the Tlargest of these. .

Like many early railroads, the New Castle and Frenchtown was built on 10"
or 12" square stone sleepers that carried the strap-iron rails. This system
proyed unsatisfactory, and by the middle of the nineteenth century had been
abandoned in fayor of wooden ties. Stone sleepers from the New Castle and
Frenchtown, salyaged by local residents, may be seen today.in the foundations
of buildings near the right-of-way. ° '
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; During the seyenteenth and eighteenth centuries, the Chesapeake and Delaware

l drainages.were.the: principal avenues.of:settlement in the middle colonies. Although

- they were separated by only a narrow isthmus, *their political and economic histories
followed different courses. ‘Passage across the land barrier was tedious=&t best; even
as late as the beginning of the nineteenth century. Although the ‘portage T
was only fiyve or ten miles wide in places, shippers usually preferred:-to take the
dangerous sea route between the two bays. -~ - '

As early as the middle of the seventeenth century, entrepreneurs were proposing
canals, turnpikes, and other internal improvements to connect the two bays. A century
and a half latér, however, the portage still involved poor roads, undependable
packet connections, and long delays.  Albert Gallatin, in his 1808 report to Congress,

~—. recommended a series of canals that would.eliminate the portages and connect New
England with the South by an inland water passage. Gallatin's recommendations were
eventually carried out, but not by Congress. Independent companies built canals,
turnpikes and railroads, helter-skelter, along the East Coast, first -to connect major
waterways, and finally to provide a single land transportation system.

While the present coastwise transportation network was evolying, dozens of
companies built turnpikes, canals, and railroads that enjoyed a brief prosperity, only
to be superseded in a few years by newer and cheaper routes. The New Castle and
Frenchtown Railroad was one of these ephemeral schemes. : -

As early as 1775, there was regular stage service between New Castle and Frenchtown,

a jolting seventeen-mile passage over unimproved county roads that connected with the
relatively comfortable packet boats on the Delaware and ETk rivers. By 1811, the
demand for an improved road between the two rivers led to the construction of a short
turnpike from New Castle to Clark's Corners, a distance of about three miles. The
successful completion of this turnpike revived interest in the proposal for a New
Castle and Frenchtown turnpike, which had been chartered in 1809 but hever organized.
Delaware and Maryland rechartered the New Castle and Frenchtown company in 1813, and
by 1816 it had built a fifteen-mile road from Clark's Corners to Frenchtown. Until

the Chesapeake and Delaware Canal was opened in 1829, the turnpike from New Castle

to Frenchtown was the principal route over the portage. The success of the Frenchtown
route encouraged the Elkton and Christiana Turnpike Company, which built a competitive
road to connect the head of Elk River with the head of the Christina. This compe-
-tition hurt the Frenchtown company, which was dependent almost entirely upon the trans-

< peninsular stages operated by the Union Line of steamboats.

(See Continuation Sheet No. 1)
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Significance, continued

In 1821, the turnpikes suffered another blow when the Delaware General Assembly
levied a tax on them to support the proposed college at Newark, denounced as "a small
village in an obscure corner of this state, where it is impossible it can ever flourish."
The tax was repealed the following year.

By 1827, it had become apparent that the canal across the isthmus would be com-
pleted, and would siphon away the stage traffic that supported the Frenchtown road. The
turnpike management began to investigate the prospect. of building a railroad; a few
miles to the north, citizens of Wilmington proposed to build a rail 1ine from that
city to Elkton. The Wilmington interests got their Maryland charter, and a few months
later the Frenchtown company obtained permission during the 1827-28 Maryland lLegislative
session to expand its own operations io include a railroad in Cecil County. When the
Delaware legislature met in 1829, it failed to charter the Wilmington road, but passed
acts that permitted the New Castle and Frenchtown turnpike companies to build railroads.
By March 1830, the two companies had raised enough new capital to permit them to build

. railroads. The next month, the short New Castle Turnpike was merged into the New
Castle and Frenchtown Turnpike and Railroad Company. The chief engineer was John
Randel, Jr., who had designed the C & D Canal, but had no experience with railroads.
Randel laid out a route, a few hundred yards south of the turnpike, which was under
construction by Jduly.

On February 28, 1832, the railroad opened for passenger service, using horse-
drawn carriages because its temporary rails were too 1ight for locomotives. By Septem-
ber 10, English-built steam locomotives were operating on an improved roadbed. The
New Castle and Frenchtown Railroad was not only among the first railroads built in the
United States, but it was the first upon which steam power was applied for the
transportation of passengers.

In 1833, the railroad absorbed the Steam Navigation Company, which operated packet
boats to the Tine's termini. A competing steam packet 1line, operating through the
canal, forced the railroad to charge unreasonably low fares that weakened its financial
structure. By 1834, however, the competition had been put out of business, and the
railroad enjoyed a monopoly on the passenger-carrying trade that lasted until 1837, when
a new railroad network between Philadelphia and Baltimore was completed. The New
Castle and Frenchtown tried to compete with the new line until 1843, when it became a
subsidiary of the Philadelphia, Wilmington, and Baltimore Railroad. A spur to Wiimingtor
chartered as the New Castle and Wilmington Railroad, was completed in 1852. 1In 1855,
the Delaware Railroad built a connection with the New Castle and Frenchtown east of

Glasgow. The 1ine west of the junction was abandoned after service to Frenchtown wharf
was discontinued.

[The major portions of this form have been reproduced almost exactly from the nomina-
tion form prepared by the State of Delaware].
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